M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
April 30, 2003
5:27 PM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 70, Side
SFC 03 # 70, Side
SFC 03 # 71, Side
SFC 03 # 71, Side

w>rw>

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 5:27 PM
PRESENT

Senator Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senat or Donny O son

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Con Bunde

Al so Attending: JOE BALASH, Staff to Senator Therriault;
Testifiers are listed in the order they spoke.

SUMVARY | NFORNMATI ON

SB 117- ELI M NATI NG LONGEVI TY BONUS PROGRAM

The Commttee heard from the Senate President and took public
testinmony. The bill was held in Conmttee

#SB117
SENATE BILL NO. 117
"An Act elimnating the |ongevity bonus program and naking

rel ated conform ng changes; and providing for an effective
date."

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

SFC- 03 (1) 04/ 30/ 03



Co-Chair WIlken rem nded that the commttee substitute proposes to
“continue the Alaska Longevity Bonus Program as a needs-based
program for Al askan seniors with a nonthly income of 150 percent
over the Al aska federal poverty |evel.”

AT EASE 5:30 PM/ 5:30 PM

JCE BALASH, Staff to Senator Therriault, re-read the statenent he
made during the previous hearing into the record. [See Commttee
m nutes for April 30, 2003, 9:00am ]

Co-Chair WIlken requested the wtness review the eligibility
requi renents proposed in the conmttee substitute.

M. Balash listed nonthly income limts of $1,402 for an individual
and $1,893 for a couple, assets that do not exceed $4,000 for an
i ndi vidual and $6,000 for a couple. He noted that a primary
resi dence, one autonobile and sufficient funds for burial would be
exenpted fromthe asset limtations.

Senat or Bunde conmented that the State is facing a fiscal challenge
and warned that if not addressed, a serious econom c downturn or
depression woul d occur. He relayed that nany have stated that this
is alegislative problem but he argued this is a problem shared by
all Al askan residents. He requested that those who oppose any
reduction to the l|ongevity bonus program offer suggestions to
conpensate for the funding.

Co-Chair WIlken stated this neeting would not “turn into a debate”
on how to bal ance the budget, etc.

JIM GARRI GUES, Abbott Loop Conmunity Council, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage and asked why nonresidents and aliens
are given longevity bonuses. He asked why people who “never earned
a paycheck” in Al aska are receiving these paynents. He al so wanted
to know why the elderly nmust shoul der the responsibility to bal ance
the budget, and asserted it is the Legislature’'s duty to find
anot her sol ution.

RON COMN, Long Term Care Orbudsman, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage that he understood the fiscal challenges of the
State. He told of his experiences in working with senior citizens.
He listed two reasons the |ongevity bonus should be naintained:
respect for the contributions they have made to the State, and
because a promse was nmade to them He stated the neans test
criterion is too limted and he offered to assist in determning

SFC- 03 (2) 04/ 30/ 03



nore appropriate criteria.

J.R  HAWK LANGMVAN, Pioneers of Alaska, Igloo #15, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage that he does not financially rely on
the longevity bonus and would be willing to forgo receiving his
paynents if he were assured that the funds would be w sely spent.
He spoke to the need of these funds for the economies of rura
vi |l | ages.

DELI SA CULPEPPER testified via tel econference from Anchorage, about
disparities in the Denali KidCare program criteria conpared to
Medi care coverage for senior citizens. She told of the reliance on
| ongevity bonus paynents to nany senior citizens to pay
prescription drug expenses.

GORDON J. SEVERSON testified via teleconference from Anchorage to
yield his time to Elizabeth Dennis.

ELI ZABETH DENNIS, Alaska Resident since 1957 testified via
t el econference from Anchorage that the |longevity bonus is crucial
to the econony of many villages. She inforned that reductions to
the program would renpbve an inportant cash flow source to the
econony of the State. She predicted many residents would be forced
to nmove Qutside where their noney is stretched farther. She
asserted that the state inconme tax nust be reinstated.

MARGE ZIELINSKI testified via tel econference from Fairbanks and
read statenents she submtted earlier to the Conmttee [copy on
file.] She asserted, “leave the longevity bonus alone; it is not
broke.” She added that the issue of the programs cost would
resolve itself, remarking, “read the obituaries”.

GLENN HACKNEY testified via teleconference from Fairbanks to his
di sbelief that the |ongevity bonus programis being revised again.
He opined that the operational expenses of the program are m ni nal
and he chall enged the expenses listed in the fiscal note. He quoted
session laws from 1972 citing that the program should not be based
on incone or assets. He assured he would pay taxes associated to
operating his vehicle, including the proposed increases in gasoline
taxes registration fees and the proposed surcharges for new tire
pur chases.

NANCY MENDENHALL testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks about
the investnents that retirees contribute to the State, including
vol unteerism She warned that the State would suffer if nmany senior
citizens relocated to other states. She recommended that State
enpl oyee positions should be elimnated rather than the | ongevity

SFC- 03 (3) 04/ 30/ 03



bonus program

CLIFF BRENNEN testified via teleconference from Fairbanks that
“l'ike the road to Hell” this legislation is probably well intended.
He cautioned that income qualifications would create a further
di vi de between rural and urban comunities, suggesting that rural
residents are able to hold harm ess significantly nore assets than
urban residents, including boats and fish wheel s.

GLEN FRANKLI N testified via tel econference from Fairbanks that he
came to Fairbanks in Septenmber 1933. He found this |egislation
degrading and an insult to the participants in the program
regardl ess of whether they would qualify under the inconme and
assets standards. He noted today is his birthday.

CHARLES M CHON testified via teleconference from Honer that he
noved to Alaska in 1994 for health reasons. He stated that if he
did not receive the longevity bonus he would need to |eave the
State due to cost of living. He suggested State enpl oyees should
take a sal ary reduction.

CARL GLANVILLE testified via teleconference from Honer about an
event that destroyed his bridge. He suggested “a Ilittle
housekeeping on the part of the State” to reduce the nunber of
enpl oyees who “actually contribute nothing”.

IRFS DOUGLAS testified via teleconference from Honmer that the
program shoul d not be changed because participants are “dying out”.
She did not want to be forced to receive wel fare.

VI JERREL, PhD. testified via teleconference from Homer in
opposition to the commttee substitute, stressing the program
shoul d remai n unchanged. She qualified that she does not receive
| ongevity bonus paynents. She infornmed that former Governor Jay
Hamond est abl i shed the program as an incentive for senior citizens
to remain in Al aska. She requested identification of those seniors
who supposedly do not depend on the bonus incone.

JAVES DENNI'S, testified via teleconference froman offnet |ocation
in Craig

SFC 03 # 70, Side B 06:14 PM

M. Dennis continued that the “free ride is over” and that the
State i ncone tax nust be reinstated.

SFC- 03 (4) 04/ 30/ 03



JUNE HAAS testified via tel econference froman offnet location in
Hai nes that she m ssed qualifying for the | ongevity bonus program
by three days; however she has many friends who depend on the
benefits. She expressed the programwas never intended as an incone
program She suggested that if a nmeans test is inplenented the
income | evel should be set at $2500 per individual. She furthered
that the incone for couples should be no less than for two
i ndividuals, as living expenses are the sane for one person as two.

LORI LYN SWANSON, Manager, Fireweed Place, and Board Menber, Al aska
Comm ssion on Aging, testified in Juneau that of the seniors who
qualify for subsidized housing, 30-40 percent of their inconme is
conprised of |longevity bonus benefits. She spoke of incone
qualifications for |owincone senior housing, stressing the anounts
are significantly higher than the anounts proposed in the commttee
substitute.

DORIS ROBBINS, Retired Public Enployees of Alaska, testified in
Juneau that this bill breaks a prom se nade when the provisions to
phase out the programwere inplenented in 1994. She suggested that
those seniors who would no longer qualify would take their
remai ni ng i ncone, |eave the State and spend that noney el sewhere.

MYRNA GARDNER, Juneau resident, testified in Juneau that this bil
woul d i npact Al aska’ s nost vul nerable citizens. She suggested two
options to the State’'s budget crisis, reduced spending and
generating revenues. She asserted that generating revenues would
“make those requesting prograns pay”. She conpared the revenues
potentially generated by a State inconme tax, particularly from
nonr esi dent s.

RCSALEE WALKER, AARP and board nenber, O der Persons Action G oup,
testified in Juneau that since this proposal was first offered, the
organi zations have offered services to assist in finding
alternatives. However, she stated those offers have not been well
received. She referenced the application for adult public
assi stance prograns [copy on file] and stated the qualifications do
not address senior citizens particular circunstances.

M KE RACE, Vice President, Pioneers of Al aska, testified in Juneau
that the organization is in opposition to the bill. He quoted
Robert Service regarding the obligations of a prom se nmade. He
suggested the Commttee consider all testinony received.

EMVA ANDREW testified via tel econference from an offnet |ocation
about the inpacts of elimnation of the |Iongevity bonus to el ders

SFC- 03 (5) 04/ 30/ 03



residing in villages. She noted nany of these elders are not
educat ed and have no ot her neans of incone.

ROBERT NI CK, village mayor and lifelong Al askan, testified via
tel econference froman of fnet | ocation about the | arge percentage
of residents over the age of 65 in the Bethel area. He was thankf ul
for the longevity benefit paynents received by his deceased not her
for four years.

PETRI A FALKENBERG testified via tel econference from Kenai about the
dependence on the longevity bonus by many seniors for nedical
expenses. She noted she is not a senior citizen. She asserted the
seniors have nmade the “ultinmate sacrifice” in nmaking Al aska “what
it is today.” She suggested inplenenting a state lottery as an
alternate nethod of addressing the State’s budget situation.

LENORE JONES testified via teleconference from Kenai that Al aska
voters elected the legislators to represent them

DALE JOHNSON testified via tel econference from Kenai that he woul d
be willing to forgo his $100 nonthly longevity bonus paynent if
ot her concessions were nade by the Legi sl ature.

THELMA LUDW GSEN testified via tel econference from Ket chi kan t hat
she opposes elimnation of |ongevity benefits for seniors |iving on
a “cl ose budget”

MARGARET ANTONSON, enployed by the Division of Public Assistance
for 28 years, testified via tel econference from Ket chi kan about the
difficulties for elderly people to request public assistance. She
poi nted out that the paperwork itself is difficult.

CLEO WESTON, b51-year Al askan, testified via teleconference from
Ket chi kan that she had felt “shortchanged” when she first received
t he bonus as paynment anmounts shoul d have been based on | ength of
Al askan residency. She expressed it is hard to request public
assi stance and that she grew up when welfare was a “nasty word”.

DEE DALHAUG 36-year old, adm nistrator of an assisted |iving hone,
testified via tel econference from Ketchi kan about the difficulties
of elderly to obtain housing. She stressed those who receive the
| ongevity bonus have earned it and deserve it.

Senat or Bunde commented on testinony given indicating that the
| ongevity bonus program was established as a promse. He cited
di scussions held during the consideration of the enabling
| egi slation noting that forner Senator Coghill testified that when

SFC- 03 (6) 04/ 30/ 03



the State funds were dimni shed, the program could be elim nated.

MARY HASTI NGS, 75-year resident, testified via tel econference from
Ket chi kan that the |ongevity bonus program shoul d remnmai n unchanged
and not be needs based.

MARY HARDER, 40-year Kodi ak resident, testified via tel econference
from Kodiak that although Kodiak is beautiful place, it is
i mpossible to exist in this |ocation on incone |ess than $2500 per
nonth. She said | osing seniors would have a “sad effect” on Kodi ak,
particularly on |ocal churches, as they pledge |arger percentage of
their incones to churches.

DEE LOESCHE, Wasilla Senior Center, testified via tel econference
from Mat-Su in agreenent with nost of the other testinony given.
She had questions about the qualifications and predicted the
adm ni strative costs of the anmended program woul d be too high.

BETTY MERCER, 78-year old, testified via tel econference from Mat-Su
that she is responsible for the distribution of food in Wasilla.
She listed the incone requirenents for participation in the food
bank program which are considerably higher than the proposed
anounts in the committee substitute.

CHESTER WEBB testified via teleconference from Mat-Su that the
| egi slators continue to increase their salaries, although considers
decreasing benefits to seniors. He supported funding for education,
and suggested elimnation of unnecessary prograns and pork barrel
projects. He asserted that seniors built this State. He charged
t hat Governor Mirkowski |ied during the gubernatorial canpaign and
threatened that those |egislators who vote for passage of this bil
woul d be renoved from office.

RUSSELL SANDERS, Alaska resident since 1955, testified via
t el econference from Mat-Su that he works with seniors and that he
has seen the state develop. He directed the Commttee to | eave the
senior citizens al one.

LOU SE HARRI'S, 89-years old, and President, Pal mer Senior Center,
testified via teleconference from Mat-Su that seniors are a
resource to the State. She explained that seniors spend their
i ncome, pensions and bonuses in Alaska. She also infornmed that
seniors are proud and that it would be deneaning to apply for
wel fare benefits.

JI MW STEVENS testified via tel econference froman offnet |ocation,
on behal f of elders, about the expenses of operating a boat as well

SFC- 03 (7) 04/ 30/ 03



as heating expenses. He stressed that if |egislators care about
el ders they should no change the | ongevity bonus program

NORVA NI CLAS, Director, XYZ Senior Center, testified via
tel econference from Nonme, that the |ongevity bonus program nust be
left in place. She stated that these benefits funds are necessary
for seniors to remain in the conmunity, as no pioneer hone or
assisted living housing exists in the None area.

SFC 03 # 71, Side A 07:03 PM

DAN KARMUN, AK Conm ssion on Aging-Northwest Area, testified via
tel econference from None, that he considers his parents his best
teachers. They taught him to respect his elders, he noted. He
i nforned that Northwest Al aska has the hi ghest cost of |iving and
that consideration of this should be made in the incone eligibility
criteria.

ALBERT KENHERDER testified via teleconference from Sitka that the
| ongevity bonus benefits paid remain in the State. He warned that
if the programwere elimnated he woul d | eave Al aska and spend his
soci al security incone el sewhere.

CHARLES BRCKER [spelling not verified] testified via tel econference
from Tok that the existing program should not be changed. He
poi nted out that the | ocal senior program assists about 45 seniors
daily. He noted seniors are year-round residents do not only reside
in Tok during the sunmers to serve tourists.

JOHN CERUTTI, 83-years old, testified via teleconference from
Val dez that the Governor and the legislators lack the politica
will to inplenent an inconme tax. He disagreed with the change to
t he one-year residency requirement, asserted it was “stupid’. As a
civil engineer he informed that he helped build the State’s
i nfrastructure.

ETHEL K. BROM testified via teleconference from Anchorage that
al though senior citizens never paid into the |ongevity bonus
program they receive benefits due to the contributions they nade
to the State. She noted she remained in Al aska because of the
bonuses.

PEG STOQUT, Chapter President, AARP, testified via tel econference

from Anchorage that obituaries published in the past two days
i ndi cate seven deat hs of people over the age of 73. She asked the

SFC- 03 (8) 04/ 30/ 03



savings of naking the longevity bonus program needs based,
predicting it would be costly to inplenment and another |ayer of
bureaucracy. She surmised the recipients “pay” for the benefits in
the formof sharing their experiences.

LOS ARNOLD testified via tel econference from Anchorage that nost
reci pients of longevity bonus paynments do not deposit their checks
into a Swiss bank account. He asserted that by sponsoring this
| egi sl ati on, Governor Murkowski “shot hinmself in the foot”. She
gquestioned the cost to inplenent and nonitor the neans program
conpared to retaining the existing programuntil all participates
pass away.

W NFRED EASTFI ELD testified via tel econference from Anchorage t hat
at 88-years of age, along with her husband who is 93, they would
not be on the programtoo nuch Ionger. She told of living on a | ow
income and said she did not receive food stanps because she
scrounged grocery stores for |eftovers.

NORVAN EASTFI ELD testified via tel econference from Anchorage about
his youth, pointing out that he does not drink or snoke and does
vol unt eer worKk.

CHARLOTTE M DAVI S, Public Health Nurse, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks that she is not an el der and has no
famly in Al aska. She furthered that she has worked with el ders for
over 20 years. She stated that elimnation of the |ongevity bonus
program would have severe inpacts, specifically relating to
Medi cai d. She expl ai ned that nore people woul d becone eligible and
forced to enlist in the Medicaid program She predicted the
Pi oneers’ Honmes woul d be affected as well.

ED SHELLI NGER testified via tel econference from Fai rbanks that the
Governor and the nenbers of the Legislature do not listen. He
suggested that senior citizens work with a legislative conmttee
for a two-year period to reach solutions to the State’s fiscal
situation. He told of his recent hospitalization and the rel ated
expenses.

BOB HUFMAN testified via teleconference from Fairbanks about
newspaper articles that have nade a “major issue” of the |ongevity
bonus program creating two classes of senior citizens: those who
receive benefits and those who do not. He surmsed that the
provisions of this commttee substitute would create two cl asses of
wel fare recipients.

HAL LEVEY testified via teleconference from Fairbanks that this

SFC- 03 (9) 04/ 30/ 03



woul d create a hardship for those with noderate incones.

BETTY HUFMAN testified via tel econference from Fairbanks that she
is opposed to any kind of neans test, asserting it is *“ill
concei ved”. She stated that seniors are being asked to “build the
bridge” until revenues from the Governor’s resource devel opnment
prograns are realized. She pointed out that seniors would not live
| ong enough to see the benefits.

ERNEST LINE testified via teleconference fromoffnet |location in
Wasi |l a that candi date Murkowski did not speak of an intention to
elimnate the |longevity bonus program He stated that the commttee
substitute should be reviewed and rewitten. He suggested the
Legi slature should “bite the bullet” and reinstate an incone tax.

MARI E DARLI N, Coordinator, Capital Gty Task Force, AARP, testified
in Juneau that seniors could be involved in reaching a solution to
Al aska’ s budget probl ens.

PAT LUBY, Legislative Representative, AARP, testified in Juneau
t hat gerontol ogy studies show that as peopl e age they woul d becone
poor. He added that this would occur nostly anong wonen, as nost of
their assets are utilized to support dying spouses. He cal cul ated
the hourly wage of those seniors who would qualify under the
proposed income requirements would be $5.50. He also noted that
prescription drug coverage and subsequent expenses are different
for each person, which is not considered in this |legislation. He
asserted that seniors told to save their noney for retirenent, but
are not told that if the do this and “follow the rules”, they would
be puni shed.

JOE SONNEMAN testified in Juneau that because his parents live in
Chi cago, he assists seniors in Juneau in hopes that soneone el se
will care for his parents in Chicago. He surmsed that a “welfare
approach” to the longevity bonus program politically would “not
sell”. He recommended a progressive incone tax. He al so recommended
a reduction of the Departnent of Corrections budget to three
percent of total expenditures.

CAROL FLEEK testified in Juneau on behalf of her parents in
Ket chi kan who have lived in Al aska since 1953. She infornmed that
her parents spend $400 each nonth for prescriptions. She indicated
there are few job opportunities for elderly residents in Ketchikan.
Al t hough her parents’ inconme is greater than the proposed
qual i fying amount, she stated it could be six nonths to one year
before they would qualify for subsidized housing benefits. She told
the Cormittee that she and her siblings assist in supplenmenting

SFC- 03 (10) 04/ 30/ 03



their parent’s inconmes. She suggested a $100 senior tax levied to
all workers or a $100 reduction taken from each resident’s
per manent fund dividend to pay the expenses of the |ongevity bonus
program She asserted she would be willing to forego receiving a
per mmnent fund di vi dend.

BERTHA HANSEN testified via tel econference from Ketchi kan that it
is the seniors that nmade the “great |and of Alaska” what it is
today. She charged that seniors are now expected to bal ance the
State’ s budget when the |egislators have not. Seniors are proud and
shoul d not have to go on welfare, she stressed.

ED ZASTROW testified via tel econference from Ketchi kan about the
multiple tines he has testified in opposition to this bill. He
asserted that the commttee substitute is “conpl etely unacceptabl e”
because the qualifying nonthly incone and asset anmpbunts are too | ow
and “insulting” to seniors. He expressed that this bill needs
addi tional study, and that changing the programis unacceptable. He
reiterated that he opposes any change to the |longevity bonus
program

PAT FLEMM NG testified via tel econference fromMat-Su to tell the
Conmittee to | eave bonus exactly the way it is. She noted she does
not receive bonus, that she has lived in A aska for four years and
| oves seniors. She asked if a lawsuit would require the program
opened to all seniors in the State. She spoke to costly litigation
and the total |oss of the program

Co-Chair Wlken inforned the witness that a prelimnary opinion
fromthe Legislature’ s legal council rules that this legislation is
constitutional and | egal.

Senat or Bunde asked if the witness’ coments pertained to the
| ongevity bonus program as it was established in 1976, or the
anended program i npl enented at the direction of the court.

Ms. Flemm ng answered that her statenment is to the program“as it
stands today”.

SFC 03 # 71, Side B 07:50 PM

FRANK G RARD testified via teleconference from Mat-Su that the
proposed neans testing should be further reviewed. Wthout the
| ongevity bonus benefits, he informed that he and wife would | ose
their honme. He disagreed with the argunment that because sone

SFC- 03 (11) 04/ 30/ 03



seniors currently do not qualify for the program others should be
elimnated fromit as well. He suggested |egislators should donate
a percentage of their “lavish” inconme to fund educati on. He spoke
to a correlation between taxation of church property to this
matter, surmsing that because of religious political clout no
politician would consider taxing church property.

JIM WATENPAUGH testified via teleconference from Mt-Su that
“forcing grandma or granddad on welfare rolls” is “cold bl ooded”.
He stressed that seniors pay the ultinmate cost with their lives in
endi ng recei pt of |ongevity bonus benefits. He charged that if this
bill passes, sonme legislators would have to “learn to walk on
water” to get reel ected.

BARBARA KOGASSOGOON, Savoonga resi dent, testified Vi a
tel econference from None that she needs the longevity bonus to
provi de housing for her kids and grandkids.

ED BARBER testified via tel econference from Anchorage to question
the fiscal note. He expected the admnistrative costs would
increase drastically, although the legislature is supposedly
opposed to additional bureaucracy.

FUTURE MALVO testified via teleconference in Anchorage in
opposition to SB 117.

ANN SECREST, Director of Communications, AARP, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage, about the adverse affects of
reductions to the longevity bonus program She spoke of Norm
Eastfield s volunteer work at the MLaughlin Youth Center.

KATHERI NE FERGUSON, Al aska resident since 1958, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks, that she and her husband had
expected they would have to | eave the State after retirenent. She
noted the | ongevity bonus program was enacted and enabled themto
remain in Alaska near their famly. She expressed that she feels
she is in a battle with Governor Mirkowski. She requested the
Commttee delay its final decision on this legislation until nore
information is available. She stressed that seniors require tine to
adj ust to | ower incones.

JOE V. STRUNKA testified via tel econference from Fairbanks that he
is not a recipient of the longevity bonus program He added that he
came to Alaska in 1962 and has sent letters and testified before
the Know es Administration in support of continuing the |ongevity
bonus program |If turned into a welfare program he recalled that
former Governor Knowl es was concerned the eligibility would be

SFC- 03 (12) 04/ 30/ 03



expanded to all seniors aged 65 and ol der and would be a “Pandora’s
box”. M. Strunka asserted that the “cancer” is actually the nunber
of State enployees. He suggested the State should privatize
functions and elimnate the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities. He furthered that the Departnment of Fish and Gane
should be elimnated as well because the federal governnment has
t aken over many nmanagenent duties. He al so suggested reductions to
hi gher education funding, stating that the many canpuses are not
necessary and telling of a distance education programin London.

Senat or Bunde commented that if every State enpl oyee position were
elimnated, the State deficit would only be reduced by one-half.

Co-Chair WIlken noted 62 testifiers spoke at this hearing and he
t hanked them as well as those Conmittee nmenbers present.

#
ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 08:10 PM

SFC- 03 (13) 04/ 30/ 03



